
1 
 

MINUTES 
CITY OF GLENDALE PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5850 WEST GLENDALE AVENUE 

GLENDALE, ARIZONA 85301 
 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2015 
6:00 p.m. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at approximately 6:00 p.m. 
  
Commissioners Present: Commissioners Dobbelaere (via telephone), Harper, Hirsch, 
Gallegos, Moreno, and Vice Chairperson Lenox and Chairperson Johnston were in attendance. 
 
City Staff Present: Tabitha Perry, Assistant Planning Director, Jon Froke, AICP, Planning 
Director, Sam McAllen, Development Services Director, James Gruber, Assistant City Attorney, 
and Diana Figueroa, Recording Secretary. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairperson Johnston called for Approval of Minutes. 
 
COMMISSIONER HARPER MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 1, 
2015 PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES.  VICE CHAIRPERSON LENOX SECONDED THE 
MOTION WHICH WAS APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
WITHDRAWALS AND CONTINUANCES  
Chairperson Johnston called for any withdrawals and/or continuances.  There were none. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
Chairperson Johnston called for staff’s presentation.  The two public hearing items were 
presented together. 
 
1. GPA13-06:  A request by LVA Urban Design Studio representing John F. Long 

Properties LLLP for a general plan amendment to establish a 21.94 acre shopping center 
site on the northeast corner of Camelback Road and 91st Avenue, eliminate an office 
designation in this area, and to establish a 10.83 acre shopping center site on the 
southeast corner of Bethany Home Road and 91st Avenue (9050 West Camelback Road). 
The site is located in the Yucca District. Staff Contact: Jon Froke, AICP, Planning 
Director. 

 
2. ZON13-09:  A request by LVA Urban Design Studio representing John F. Long 

Properties LLLP to rezone 382.5 acres from C-2 (General Commercial), C-O 
(Commercial Office) and R1-8 PRD (Single Residence, Planned Residential 
Development) to PAD (Planned Area Development) to establish a General Development 
Plan for StoneHaven. Approximately 1,161 dwelling units are planned. The site is located 



  December 3, 2015 
  Planning Commission Minutes 
   
 

2 
 

between the Bethany Home Road alignment, 83rd Avenue, Camelback Road and 91st 
Avenue (9050 West Camelback Road). The site is located in the Yucca District. Staff 
Contact: Jon Froke, AICP, Planning Director. 

 
Jon Froke, AICP, Planning Director, stated this was a request by LVA Urban Design Studio 
representing John F. Long Properties LLLP for a general plan amendment to establish a 21.94 
acre shopping center site on the northeast corner of Camelback Road and 91st Avenue, eliminate 
an office designation in this area, and to establish a 10.83 acre shopping center site on the 
southeast corner of Bethany Home Road and 91st Avenue. He said the site was located in the 
Yucca District.  He added the request was also to rezone 382.5 acres from C-2, C-O and R1-8 
PRD to PAD to establish a General Development Plan for StoneHaven.  He noted that 
approximately 1,161 dwelling units are planned.  He stated the two requests on the General Plan 
Amendment were to modify the land use map at these locations.  He stated that vehicular access 
for StoneHaven would be provided from Bethany Home Road, 83rd Avenue, Camelback Road, 
87th Avenue and 91st Avenue. He added that water and wastewater system will be provided for 
each development parcel. Additionally, landscaping entry features, perimeter theme walls and 
planned open space will be provided. 
 
Mr. Froke stated the Planning Commission reviewed these applications at their workshop on 
June 19, 2014.  He added that these requests will amend the General Plan Land Use Map and 
approve a PAD for StoneHaven.  He noted that the findings indicate that the amendment was 
consistent with the policies and objectives of the General Plan and the proposed amendment 
furthers the public health and safety and general welfare of the citizens of Glendale and provides 
new housing employment and shopping opportunities. 
 
The applicant held two neighborhood meetings.  The first meeting was held on November 25, 
2013.  Staff sent notification letters to 542 property owners and interested parties.  
Approximately 63 people were in attendance along with the applicant and city staff.  The 
questions and concerns comprised of existing and future traffic volumes, lot size and density and 
the overall quality of the project.  Additionally, a second neighborhood meeting was held on 
April 16, 2014 and approximately 45 people were in attendance along with the applicant, city 
staff and Councilmember Chavira.  Staff noted that the neighborhood was generally in support of 
the project.  Planning staff received three telephone calls from nearby residents who were 
inquiring about various details of the proposal. 
 
In conclusion, Mr. Froke stated this request appears to meet the required findings.  Staff 
recommends the Commission approve GPA13-06, as filed, and ZON13-09, subject to the six 
stipulations contained in the staff report.  He asked if the Commission had any questions.  
 
Chairperson Johnston called for questions from the Commission.  There were none. 
 
Chairperson Johnston called for the applicant to make a presentation. 
 
Steven Earl, attorney and applicant's representative stated that Mike Curley the attorney for this 
project for 18 months had died suddenly and unexpectedly in June.  He said he was proud to take 
over the case from that point to the present.  He stated that members of the Long family were in 



  December 3, 2015 
  Planning Commission Minutes 
   
 

3 
 

the audience.  He thanked Mr. Froke for providing them with a very good summary of the case 
and staff report.  He said they agree with all the stipulations proposed.  He displayed and 
discussed aerial photo maps of the proposed site project. He provided a summary of the project. 
 
Mr. Earl stated that it was important to note that at their first neighborhood meeting on 
November 25, 2013 approximately 63 people were in attendance along with the applicant and 
city staff.  The questions and concerns comprised of existing and future traffic volumes, lot size 
and density and the overall quality of the project.  He said a particular concern was having 
apartments built in the area, which were removed from the plan.  Additionally, it was important 
for the community to have a grocery store anchor shopping center, which was added.  He said 
that the second neighborhood meeting was held on April 16, 2014 and approximately 45 people 
were in attendance along with the applicant.  He noted that at that meeting street improvements 
were discussed. He asked if the Commissioners had any questions. 
 
Chairperson Johnston asked for any additional comments or questions. 
 
Commissioner Harper asked what the price of the homes would be.  Mr. Earl stated that from his 
experience, home builders were building homes in the $300,000 to $500,000 range for that area.  
 
Chairperson Johnston asked if there had been any conversations with the school districts.  Mr. 
Earl stated that the school districts indicated they can accommodate and have adequate space for 
both high school and elementary students. 
 
Commissioner Harper asked if this would be a gated community.  Mr. Earl stated that this project 
as a whole was not a gated community.  However, since there were 12 development parcels in 
the area, some might be gated.  Nevertheless, the project as a whole was not gated and will have 
collector streets running throughout the area.  
 
Chairperson Johnston opened the public hearing. With no one wishing to speak, he closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Chairperson Johnston called for a motion. 
 
VICE CHAIRPERSON LENOX MADE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL 
OF GPA13-06 AS SUBMITTED. COMMISSIONER MORENO SECONDED THE 
MOTION, WHICH WAS APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
James Gruber, Assistant City Attorney, stated the Planning Commission’s actions are not final 
and the Commission’s recommendation will be forwarded to City Council for further action. 
 
COMMISSIONER HARPER MADE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF 
ZON13-09 SUBJECT TO THE SIX STIPULATIONS LISTED IN THE STAFF REPORT. 
COMMISSIONER GALLEGOS SECONDED THE MOTION, WHICH WAS 
APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 



  December 3, 2015 
  Planning Commission Minutes 
   
 

4 
 

Chairperson Johnston thanked the applicant and stated he appreciates them listening to the 
community and being flexible in making the required changes and additions for the betterment of 
the community and the City of Glendale. 
 
James Gruber, Assistant City Attorney, stated the Planning Commission’s actions are not final 
and the Commission’s recommendation will be forwarded to City Council for further action. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
Chairperson Johnston asked if there was any Business From The Floor. There was none. 
 
PLANNING STAFF REPORT 
Chairperson Johnston asked for the staff report.  There was none. 
 
COMMISSION COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS 
Chairperson Johnston called for Comments and Suggestions. 
 
Chairperson Johnston wished everyone and their families a safe and happy Holiday Season. 
 
NEXT MEETING: January 7, 2016 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
WITH NO FURTHER BUSINESS, COMMISSIONER DOBBELAERE MADE A 
MOTION TO ADJOURN.  COMMISSIONER MORENO SECONDED THE MOTION, 
WHICH WAS APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 6:38 PM. 


